Case 1:07-cv-01162-REB Document 1 Filed 06/04/07 USDC Colorado Page 1 of 18

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLORADO

Civil Action No.:

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,

Plaintiff
V.

Michael J. Snyder,

Defendant.

COMPLAINT

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission (*Commission”) for its Complaint

aleges asfollows:

l. SUMMARY OF THE ACTION

1 During the years 2002 through 2004, Defendant Michael J. Snyder, the
former Chief Executive Officer of Red Robin Gourmet Burgers, Inc. (“Red Robin”),
knowingly or recklessly made incorrect representations to Red Robin and its accountants
that some of his personal travel expenses were business expenses. Red Robin then paid
for and recorded these expenses as business expenses rather than as compensation to
Defendant. Accordingly, Red Robin’s publicly-filed proxy statements and annual reports
for the fiscal years 2002 through 2004 contained material misstatements of Defendant’s
compensation.

2. Defendant’ sincorrect representations caused Red Robin to materially

understate his compensation for 2002 by approximately $408,000 or 37%; for 2003 by
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$345,000 or 25%; and for 2004 by $436,000 or 28%. The material misstatements
appeared in Red Robin’s Forms 10-K filed March 28, 2003, March 12, 2004 and April 6,
2005, in proxy statements filed April 18, 2003, April 16, 2004 and April 22, 2005, in a
Form S-3 registration statement filed November 3, 2003, and in a Form S-8 registration

statement filed June 2, 2005.

. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3. The Commission brings this action pursuant to the authority conferred
upon it by Section 20(b) of the Securities Act of 1933 (“SecuritiesAct”) [15 U.S.C. 8 77t
(b)] and Sections 21(d) and (e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”)
[15 U.S.C. 88 78u(d) and(e)] for an order permanently restraining and enjoining
Defendant and granting other equitable relief.

4, This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Section 22(a) of the
Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77v(a)] and Sections 21(e) and 27 of the Exchange Act [15
U.S.C. 88 78u(e) and 78aa).

5. Venue liesin this Court pursuant to Section 22(a) of the Securities Act [15
U.S.C. 8 77v(a)] and Section 27 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78ad].

6. In connection with the transactions, acts, practices, and courses of business
described in this Complaint, Defendant, directly or indirectly, has made use of the means
or instrumentalities of interstate commerce, of the mails, of the facilities of a national
securities exchange, and/or of the means and instruments of transportation or
communication in interstate commerce.

7. Red Robin’s headquarters are located in this judicial district, and certain of
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the transactions, acts, practices and courses of business constituting the violations of law

alleged herein occurred within thisjudicial district.

[11. DEFENDANT AND RELATED PARTY
8. Defendant Michael J. Snyder is currently a resdent of Ketchum, 1daho.
During the time period relevant to this Complaint, Defendant was employed as the
President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors of Red Robin.

Defendant retired and resigned from his positions at Red Robin on August 11, 2005.

0. Red Robin Gourmet Burgers, Inc., a Delaware corporation, is
headquartered in Greenwood Village, Colorado. Red Robin owns and franchises a chain
of casual dining restaurants across 33 states and in Canada. 1n July 2002, Red Robin
completed an initial public offering of its common stock. Red Robin stock is registered

under Section 12(b) of the Exchange Act, and trades on the Nasdag National Market.

V. SUMMARY OF VIOLATIONSAND RELIEF SOUGHT
10. Defendant violated Section 17(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. 8 77q
(a)] and Sections 10(b), 13(b)(5), and 14(a) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. 88 78j(b),
78m(b)(5), and 78n(a)] and Rules 10b-5, 13b2-1, 13b2-2 and 14a-9 [17 C.F.R. 88
240.10b-5, 240.13b2-1, 240.13b2-2, and 240.14a-9], thereunder. Defendant aided and
abetted Red Robin’ s violations of Sections 13(a), 13(b)(2)(A) and 13(b)(2)(B) of the
Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. 88 78m(a), and 78m(b)(2)] and Rules 12b-20 and13a-1, [17

C.F.R. 88 240.12b-20, and 240.13a-1,] thereunder, and Defendant violated Rule 13a-14
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[17 C.F.R. 8 240.13a-14] of the Exchange Act, and unless restrained and enjoined will
violate or aid and abet violations of such provisions.

11. The Commission also seeks an order requiring Defendant to pay third tier
civil penalties pursuant to Section 20(d)(2) of the Securities Act and Section 21(d)(3) of
the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. 88 77t(d) and 78u(d)(3)], in the amount of $250,000.00.

12. The Commission also seeks an order permanently barring Defendant from
serving as an officer and director of any public company pursuant to the equitable
authority of the court, and Section 21(d)(2) of the Exchange Act, as amended [15 U.S.C.

§ 78u(d)(2)].

V. FACTS

13. During the time period relevant to this Complaint, Defendant made
extensive use of charter jet services, chartering some fifty or more trips each year both for
personal and business use.

14. Defendant chartered the majority of his trips through one particular charter
jet service. Inor about the spring of 2001, Defendant instructed this particular charter jet
service to stop putting the names of the passengers or the destinations of the flights on its
invoices, and the charter jet service complied.

15.  Thus, beginning in 2001, the invoices sent to Defendant at Red Robin by
this charter jet service contained only the dates of trips and the amount of the charges, but
did not contain the names of passengers or destinations.

16. Defendant, at his discretion, paid some of these invoices personally and
submitted others to Red Robin for payment as alleged business expenses. When

Defendant submitted a charter jet invoice for payment by Red Robin as an alleged business
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expense, he added his own, brief handwritten notations on the face of the invoice
indicating the alleged business purpose of thetrip, but the invoices did not contain any
information regarding the passengers on, or destinations of, the charter jet trips. This
practice continued throughout 2002.

17. Defendant also submitted credit card bills, containing charges for items
such as dinners and hotels, for payment by Red Robin during this time period with his own
brief, handwritten notes indicating alleged businesses purposes for the charges.

18. At theend of 2002, Defendant was asked to review the charter jet
company invoices he had submitted to Red Robin for payment as business expenses for
that year. Inresponse, in aletter to Red Robin’s then Chief Financial Officer dated
January 1, 2003, Defendant asserted that “[a]ll invoices for charter aircraft use in FY 2002
that | submitted [to Red Robin for payment]. . . related exclusively to the business of Red
Robin.” Accordingly, no compensation arising from Defendant’ s personal usage of
charter jet service was recorded in Red Robin’s books, or reported in any of Red Robin's
public filings, for the year 2002.

19. In 2003, Red Robin adopted a policy requiring, among other things, that a
“Trip Summary Form” be completed for each charter jet trip. Thisform called for, among
other things, the dates of travel, the destination(s), the names of all passengers, and the
business purpose for the trip. The policy allowed Defendant to take personal guests on
business trips if space were available, and required Defendant to report such gueststo Red
Robin so that the value of this personal usage could be recorded as compensation to
Defendant. Thus, certain of Defendant’ s personal expenses related to charter jet travel

were authorized as compensation, and were required to be reported as such by Defendant
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to Red Robin.

20. Beginning in 2003 and continuing through 2004, Defendant began to
personaly fill out a Trip Summary Form to accompany each charter jet invoice he
submitted to Red Robin for payment as an alleged business expense. On these forms,
Defendant purported to list all passengers, destinations and the alleged business purpose
for each trip. Defendant also continued to submit credit card bills for payment during this
time period with his own brief, handwritten notes indicating aleged business purposes for
the charges.

21. For the years 2003 and 2004, Defendant sometimes indicated on Trip
Summary Forms that he was joined on aflight by hiswife. This caused Red Robin to
report, for tax purposes, additional compensation to Defendant arising from charter jet
usage for the year 2003 of roughly $10,000.00, and for the year 2004 of roughly
$20,000.00. Red Robin did not, however, report the value of this personal usage as
compensation in its proxy statements or annual reports because these then-known amounts
fell below the threshold for reporting this type of compensation pursuant to the rules of
the Commission.

22. In the spring of 2004, and again in the spring of 2005, Defendant signed a
Director’s and Officer’ s Questionnaire affirming, among other things, that his
compensation arising from charter jet usage was no more than the small amounts referred
to in paragraph 21 above. Defendant knew that the information related to his
compensation contained in the Director’ s and Officer’ s Questionnaires was incorporated
into Red Robin’s publicly-filed proxy statements.

23. Defendant also reviewed before filing Red Robin’s proxy statements for
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2003, 2004 and 2005, containing his alleged compensation for the years 2002, 2003 and
2004. For the reasons set forth in paragraphs 18 and 21 above, none of these proxy
statements reflected any compensation arising from Defendant’ s personal charter jet usage
or other personal travel expenses.

24. In 2005, after a Red Robin accountant expressed concerns, Red Robin
launched an internal investigation into Defendant’ s personal charter jet usage and other
travel expense reimbursements. The investigation revealed that Defendant had, in many
instances, failed to report the presence of personal guests, such as friends and family
members, on charter jet trips, failed to accurately report the destinations of the flights,
incorrectly represented that a business purpose existed for certain charter jet trips, and
incorrectly represented that a business purpose existed for certain credit card charges he
submitted to Red Robin for payment as business expenses. Specificdly, the investigation
revealed that Defendant had knowingly or recklessly improperly claimed as business

expenses the following amounts of personal expenses.

Charter Jet Credit Card Totd

Year Expenses Charges Personal Expenses
2002 $317,207 $91,070 $408,277
2003 275,972 68,712 344,684
2004 403,394 33,252 436,646
Total unreported compensation: $1,189,607

25.  Asareault, Defendant’ s compensation was materially understated in Red
Robin’s proxy statements, Forms 10-K and registration statements in the following

amounts:

Total Compensation
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Undisclosed Total Reported That Should Have  Percentage
Compensation Compensation Been Reported ~ Misstatement
2002 $408,277 $ 707,870 $1,116,147 37%
2003  $344,684 $1,019,752 $1,364,436 25%
2004 $436,646 $1,144,468 $1,581,114 28%

26. The misstatements appeared in Red Robin’s Forms 10-K filed March 28,
2003, March 12, 2004 and April 6, 2005, in proxy statements filed April 18, 2003, April
16, 2004 and April 22, 2005, in a Form S-3 registration statement filed November 3,
2003, and in a Form S-8 registration statement filed June 2, 2005.

27. Defendant signed and certified, pursuant 17 C.F.R. §240.13a-14, each of
these Forms 10-K. The shareholder proxy statements were solicited on behalf of the
board of directors, seeking proxy appointments for Defendant and Red Robin’s former
Chief Financial Officer.

28. In August 2005, at the request of Red Robin’s board of directors,
Defendant retired and resigned his positions at Red Robin. Red Robin issued a press
release on August 11, 2005 announcing the results of the internal investigation and
Defendant’ s departure. That same day Red Robin’s stock price dropped by 24% to a

closing price of $45.55, down from a closing price on August 10 of $59.79.
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VI. CLAIMSFOR RELIEF

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Fraud — Violation of Section 17(a)(1) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. 8 77q(a)(1)])

29. Paragraphs 1 through 28 are hereby realleged and incorporated by
reference.

30. Defendant, directly and indirectly, with scienter, in the offer or sale of Red
Robin securities, by use of the means or instruments of transportation or communication in
interstate commerce or by use of the mails, has employed a device, scheme, or artifice to
defraud.

31.  Theviolations occurred in Red Robin's Form S-3 registration statement
filed November 3, 2003, and Form S-8 registration statement filed June 2, 2005.

32.  Thesefilings were materially false because, among other things, they
materialy understated Defendant’ s compensation as set forth in paragraph 25 above.

33. Defendant violated Section 17(a)(1) of the Securities Act because he,
among other things, knowingly or recklessly failed to report and knowingly or recklessly
reported incorrectly certain of his personal charter jet and other travel expenses as
business-related as set forth in paragraphs 24 and 25 above. Defendant also knowingly or
recklessly reaffirmed his prior incorrect representations in each relevant year as set forth in
paragraphs 18, 22, and 23 above.

34. By reason of the foregoing, Defendant violated, and unless restrained and

enjoined, will violate Section 17(a)(1) of the Securities Act.
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SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(Fraud — Violations of Sections 17(a)(2) and 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C.
8 77q(a)(2) and (3)])

35. Paragraphs 1 through 28 are hereby realleged and incorporated by
reference.

36. Defendant, directly and indirectly, with scienter, in the offer or sale of Red
Robin securities, by use of the means or instruments of transportation or communication in
interstate commerce or by use of the mails, has obtained money or property by means of
untrue statements of material fact or omissionsto state material facts necessary in order to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading; and has engaged in transactions, practices, or courses of business operated as
afraud or deceit upon the purchasers of Red Robin securities.

37.  Theviolations occurred in Red Robin's Form S-3 registration statement
filed November 3, 2003, and Form S-8 registration statement filed June 2, 2005.

38.  Thesefilings were materially false because they materially understated
Defendant’ s compensation as set forth in paragraph 25 above.

39. Defendant violated Sections 17(a)(2) and (3) of the Securities Act because
he, among other things, knowingly, recklessly or negligently failed to report and
knowingly, recklessly or negligently reported incorrectly certain of his personal charter jet
and other travel expenses as business-related as set forth in paragraphs 24 and 25 above.
Defendant also knowingly, recklessly or negligently reaffirmed his prior incorrect
representations in each relevant year as set forth in paragraphs 18, 22, and 23 above.

40. By reason of the foregoing, Defendant violated, and unless restrained and

enjoined, will violate Sections 17(a)(2) and (3) of the Securities Act.
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THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Fraud — Violations of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 thereunder
[15 U.S.C. § 78j(b) and 17 C.F.R. §240.10b-5])

41. Paragraphs 1 through 28 are hereby realleged and incorporated by
reference.

42. Defendant directly and indirectly, with scienter, in connection with the
purchase or sale of Red Robin securities, by use of the means or instrumentalities of
interstate commerce or by use of the mails, employed devices, schemes, or artificesto
defraud, made untrue statements of material fact or omitted to state material facts
necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading; or has engaged in acts, practices, or courses of business
which operated as a fraud or deceit upon the purchasers or sellers of Red Robin securities.

43.  Theviolations occurred in connection with Red Robin's Forms 10-K filed
March 28, 2003, March 12, 2004 and April 6, 2005, and in Red Robin’s proxy statements
filed April 18, 2003, April 16, 2004 and April 22, 2005.

44.  Thesefilings were materially false because they materially understated
Defendant’ s compensation as set forth in paragraph 25 above.

45, Defendant violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5
thereunder because he, among other things, knowingly or recklessly failed to report and
knowingly or recklessly reported incorrectly certain of his personal charter jet and other
travel expenses as business-related as set forth in paragraphs 24 and 25 above. Defendant
also knowingly or recklessly reaffirmed his prior incorrect representations in each relevant
year as set forth in paragraphs 18, 22 and 23 above.

46. By reason of the foregoing, Defendant violated, and unless restrained and
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enjoined, will violate Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 thereunder.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Proxy Misstatements— Violation of Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act
and Rule 14a-9 thereunder [15U.S.C.878n(a) and 17 C.F.R. §
240.14a-9

47. Paragraphs 1 through 28 are hereby realleged and incorporated by
reference.

48. Defendant, by the use of the mails or by means or instrumentality of
interstate commerce or of a facility of a national securities exchange, solicited a proxy
containing a statement which, at the time and in the light of the circumstances under which
it was made, was false or mideading with respect to a material fact, or which omitted to
state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements therein not false or
misleading.

49.  Theviolations occurred in connection with Red Robin’s proxy statements
filed April 18, 2003, April 16, 2004 and April 22, 2005.

50.  Thesefilings were materially false because they materially understated
Defendant’ s compensation as set forth in paragraph 25 above.

51. Defendant violated Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act and Rule 14a-9
thereunder because he, among other things, knowingly failed to report and knowingly
reported incorrectly certain of his personal charter jet and other travel expenses as
business-related as set forth in paragraphs 24 and 25 above. Defendant also knowingly,
reaffirmed his prior incorrect representations in each relevant year as set forth in
paragraphs 18, 22, and 23 above.

52. By reason of the foregoing, Defendant violated, and unless restrained and
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enjoined, will violate Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act and Rule 14a-9 thereunder.

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Falsified Books and Records; Misrepresentationsto Accountants— Violation
of Section 13(b)(5) of the Exchange Act and Rules 13b2-1 and 13b2-2 [[15
U.S.C. 8§ 78m(b)(5), and 17 C.F.R. 88 240.13b2-1 and 240.13b2-2]

thereunder)
53. Paragraphs 1 through 28 are hereby realleged and incorporated by

reference.

54. Defendant knowingly circumvented a system of internal accounting
controls, and knowingly falsified books, records, or accounts, and directly or indirectly
falsified or caused to be falsified books, records or accounts described in Section 13(b)(2)
of the Exchange Act, by, among other things, knowingly providing false information to
Red Robin’s accountants regarding his personal charter jet and other travel expenses.

55. Defendant knowingly circumvented a system of internal accounting
controls, and knowingly falsified books, records, or accounts, and (i) made a materially
false or misleading statement to Red Robin’s accountants; and (ii) omitted to state a
material fact necessary to make statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading to a Red Robin accountant; in
connection with the preparation or filing of documents and reports required to be filed
with the Commission, by, among other things, knowingly providing false information to
Red Robin’s accountants regarding his personal charter jet and other travel expenses
which information, as Defendant knew, was included in Red Robin’s Forms 10-K filed
March 28, 2003, March 12, 2004 and April 6, 2005, and Red Robin’s proxy statements
filed April 18, 2003, April 16, 2004 and April 22, 2005.

56. By reason of the foregoing, Defendant violated, and unless restrained and
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enjoined, will violate Section 13(b)(5) of the Exchange Act, and Rules 13b2-1 and 13b2-2

thereunder [15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(5), and 17 C.F.R. §8 240.13b2-1 and 240.1302-2.].

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(False SEC Filings -- Aiding and Abetting Red Robin’s Violations of Section 13(a) of
the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. 8 78m(a)] and Rules 12b-20, and 13a-1[17 C.F.R. 88
240.12b-20 and 240.13a-1] thereunder, and violation of Rule 13a-14 [17 C.F.R. 8
13a-14] thereunder)

57. Paragraphs 1 through 28 are hereby realleged and incorporated by
reference.

58. Red Robin, anissuer of a security registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of
the Exchange Act, filed materially misleading annual reports with the Commission.

59. By reason of the foregoing, Red Robin violated Section 13(a) of the
Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. 8 78m(a)] and Rules 12b-20 and 13a-1 thereunder [17 C.F.R.
88 240.12b-20 and 240.13a-1].

60.  Theviolations occurred in connection with Red Robin's Forms 10-K filed
March 28, 2003, March 12, 2004 and April 6, 2005, which were materially misleading
because, among other things, they contained material misstatements of Defendant’ s
compensation.

61. Defendant knew of Red Robin’s violations of Section 13(a) of the
Exchange Act and Rules 12b-20 and13a-1 thereunder, and substantially assisted Red
Robin in committing these violations, because he, among other things, knowingly failed to
report and knowingly reported incorrectly certain of his personal charter jet and other
travel expenses as business-related as set forth in paragraphs 24 and 25 above.

62. By reason of the foregoing, Defendant aided and abetted Red Robin’s

violations of Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act and Rules 12b-20 and 13a-1 thereunder,
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and unless restrained and enjoined will continue to aid and abet violations of these

provisions.

SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(False Books and Records -- Aiding and Abetting Red Robin’s Violations of Section
13(b)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(A)])

63. Paragraphs 1 through 28 are hereby realleged and incorporated by
reference.

64. Red Robin failed to make and keep books, records, and accounts, which, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflected the company’ s transactions and
dispositions of its assets. The records were inaccurate because, among other things, Red
Robin improperly recorded the expenses set forth in paragraph 24 above as business
expenses rather than as compensation expenses.

65. By reason of the foregoing, Red Robin violated Section 13(b)(2)(A) of the
Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(A)].

66. Defendant knew of Red Robin’s violations of Section 13(b)(2)(A) of the
Exchange Act and substantially assisted Red Robin in committing these violations because
he, among other things, knowingly failed to report and knowingly reported incorrectly
certain of his personal charter jet and other travel expenses as business-related as set forth
in paragraphs 24 and 25 above.

67. By reason of the foregoing, Defendant aided and abetted Red Robin’s
violations of Section 13(b)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act, and unless restrained and enjoined
will continue to aid and abet violations of these provisions.

EIGHTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(Internal Accounting Controls Violations -- Aiding and Abetting Red Robin’s
Violations of Section 13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(B)])
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68. Paragraphs 1 through 28 are hereby realleged and incorporated by
reference.

69. Red Robin failed to devise and maintain a system of internal accounting
controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurances that transactions were executed in
accordance with management’ s general or specific authorization, and transactions were
recorded as necessary to maintain accountability for assets, and that access to assets was
permitted only in accordance with management’ s general or specific authorization.
Internal controls were insufficient because, among other things, they failed to ensure the
accurate recording of executive compensation expenses.

70. By reason of the foregoing, Red Robin violated Section 13(b)(2)(B) of the
Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(B)].

71. Defendant knew of Red Robin’s violations of Section 13(b)(2)(B) of the
Exchange Act and substantially assisted Red Robin in committing these violations because
he, among other things, knowingly failed to report and knowingly reported incorrectly
certain of his personal charter jet and other travel expenses as business-related as set forth
in paragraphs 24 and 25 above.

72. By reason of the foregoing, Defendant aided and abetted Red Robin’s
violations of Section 13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act, and unless restrained and enjoined

will continue to aid and abet violations of these provisions.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully requests that the Court:
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Find that the Defendant committed the violations alleged.
.

Enter an injunction, in a form consistent with Rule 65(d) of the Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure, permanently restraining and enjoining Defendant from violating, directly
or indirectly, the provisions of law and rules aleged in this Complaint.

[11.

Enter an order requiring Defendant to pay third tier civil pendties of $250,000.00,
pursuant to Section 20(d)(2) of the Securities Act and Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange
Act [15 U.S.C. 88 77t(d) and 78u(d)(3)].

V.

Order pursuant to Exchange Act Section 21(d)(2), as amended by Section 305 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. [15 U.S.C. 78u(d)(2)], or pursuant to the equitable authority of
the court, that Defendant be permanently barred from serving as an officer or director of

any public company.
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V.

Grant such other relief as this Court may deem just or appropriate.

Dated: , 2007.

Respectfully submitted,

g
ALLISON HERREN LEE
Attorney for Plaintiff
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
1801 California Street, Suite 1500
Denver, CO 80202
Phone: (303) 844-1055
Fax: (303) 844-1052




Case 1.07-cv-01162-REB Document 1-1 Filed 06/04/07 USDC Colorado Page 1 of 1

IS 44 (Rev. 11/04)

by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference ofthe United
(SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON THE REVERSE OF THE FORM )

the civil docket sheet.

CIVIL COVER SHEET

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor sugplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, exceptas provided

tates in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating

I (a) PLAINTIFFS

Securities and Exchange Commission

(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff
(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)

DEFENDANTS
Michael J. Snyder

County of Residence of First Listed Defendant

(C) Attorney’s (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number)

Allison Herren Lee
F801rCatiFforniaast,;»SuiteS 5005 -Benvét:,

NOTE:
LAND INVOLVED.

Attorneys (If Known)

Jeffrey A. Springer

Blaine, Idaho

(IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)
IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF THE

II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION

! U.S. Government
Plaintiff
D 2 U.S. Government

Defendant

D 3 Federal Question

D 4 Diversity

C8280202C0 1600 Broddway, Ste 200 Denver CO 80202
{Place an “X™ in One Box Only) III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES(Placc an “X" in One Box for Plaintiff
{For Diversity Cases Only) and One Box for Defendant)

PTF DEF PTF  DEF
{U.S. Government Not a Party) Citizen of This State r 1 D 1 Incormporated or Principal Place D 4 D 4

of Business In This State
Citizen of Another State D 2 2 Incorporated and Principal Place D 5 D 5

f Busi s h

(Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item 1II) of Business In Another State
Citizen or Subject of a D 3 D 3 Foreign Nation D 6 D 6
Foreign Country

[ 110 insurance

O 120 Marine

[ 130 Miller Act

3 140 Negotiable Instrument

0 150 Recovery of Overpayment
& Enforcement of Judgment

O 151 Medicare Act

O i1s2 Recovery of Defaulted
Student Loans
(Excl. Veterans)

O 153 Recovery of Overpayment
of Veteran’s Benefits

[ 160 stockholders’ Suits

[ 190 Other Contract

[J 195 Contract Product Liability

[ 196 Franchise

IV. NATURE OF SUIT (Place an “X" in One Bo

PERSONAL INJURY

O30 Adirplane

[0 315 Airplane Product
Liability

0320 Assault, Libel &
Slander

[ 330 Federal Employers’

Liability

[0 340 Marine

I 345 Marine Product
Liability

[J 350 Motor Vehicle

[ 355 Motor Vehicle
Product Liability

[ 360 Other Personal
Injury

x Onl

PERSONAL INJURY
J 362 Personal Injury -
Med. Malpractice
0365 Personal Injury -
Product Liability
1368 Asbestos Personal
Injury Product
Liability
PERSONAL PROPERTY
3370 Other Fraud

FOREEITURE/PENALTY:

[0 422 Appeal 28 USC 158
[ 423 Withdrawal
28 USC 157

O 610 Agriculture

3] 620 Other Food & Drug

Oe2s Drug Related Seizure
of Property 21 USC 881

630 Liquor Laws

O640 R.R. & Truck

650 Airline Regs.

Ceso Occupational

PROPERTY, RIGHTS!:

820 Copyrights
[ 830 Patent
[ 840 Trademark

0371 Truth in Lending

[1380 Other Personal
Property Damage

Oass Property Damage
Product Liability

0 220 Foreclosure

[ 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment
[ 240 Torts 1o Land

[ 245 Tort Product Liability
[J 290 All Other Real Property

CIVIL RIGHTS

l REAL PROPERTY:: s
210 Land Condemnation ﬁ

441 Voting
[ 442 Employment
[ 443 Housing/
Accommodations
[ 444 Welfare

[ 445 Amer. w/Disabilities -

Employment

[ 446 Amer. w/Disabilities -

Other

[J 440 Other Civil Rights

PRISONER PETITIONS: l
510 Motions to Vacate
Sentence

Habeas Corpus:
O530 General
1535 Death Penalty
[1540 Mandamus & Other
0550 Civil Rights
[0 555 Prison Condition

Safety/Health
1690 Other
LABOR SOCIAL SECURITY ...
0710 Fair Labor Standards 861 HIA (339511)
Act 01 862 Black Lung (923)

0863 DIW C/DIW W (405(g))
[0 864 SSID Title XVI
[ 865 RS1(405(g))
 FEDERAL/TAX'SUITS:

1870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff

or Defendant)
[ 871 IRS—Third Party

26 USC 7609

0720 Labor/M gmt. Relations
0730 Labor/M gmt.Reporting
& Disclosure Act

[]740 Railway Labor Act

[1790 Other Labor Litigation

[J791 Empl. Ret. Inc.
Security Act

[ 400 State Reapportionment
O 410 Antitrust

[T 430 Banks and Banking

[ 450 Commerce

O 460 Deportation

O 470 Racketeer Influenced and

Corrupt Organizations

[ 480 Consumer Credit

O 490 Cable/sat TV

O 810 selective Service

[ 850 Securities/Commodities/
Exchange

[ 875 Customer Challenge
12 USC 3410

[ 890 Other Statutory Actions

O 891 Agricultural Acts

I 892 Economic Stabilization Act

[ 893 Environmental Matters

[ 894 Energy Allocation Act

[ 895 Freedom of Information
Act

[0 900Appeal of Fee Determination
Under Equal Access
to Justice

[ 950 Constitutionality of
State Statutes

VY. ORIGIN {Place an “X” in One Box Only) Appeal to District
1 o 2 D 3 D 4. D 5 Transferred from D 6 o D 7 Judge from
O Original Removed from Remanded from Reinstated or another district Multidistrict Magistrate
Proceeding State Court Appellate Court Reopened _(specify) Litigation Judgment
Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):
15USC §§77 and 78
VL. CAUSE OF ACTION Brief description of cause:

Securities fraud

VII. REQUESTED IN
COMPLAINT:

|:| CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION
UNDER F.R.C.P.23

DEMAND §

CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:
JURY DEMAND: Oes

[¥INo

DATE

June 4, 2004

SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD

2r

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

RECEIPT #

AMOUNT

APPLYING IFP

{

JUDGE

MAG. JUDGE




